
 

MAY  2022 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PACKET

K E N T  D I S T R I C T
L I B R A R Y



DRAFT 

                    *        Requires Action 
**      According to Kent District Library Board of Trustee Bylaws, Article VII, Item 7.1.3, “Public comments will 
          be limited to 3 minutes per person or group and 15 minutes per subject.” 

 

 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Meeting Agenda 
 

 

 LOCATION 

Kent District Library Engelhardt, 200 N. Monroe Street, Lowell, MI, 49331 or via teleconference  

 DATE & TIME  

Thursday, May 19, 2022, at 4:30 PM. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA* 

A. Approval of Agenda 

B. Approval of Minutes: April 21, 2022  

C. Lakeland Library Cooperative Report: April 14, 2022  

D. Request for Late Closing: Comstock Park Branch to remain open until 8:00 PM on Friday, 

August 12, 2022, to accommodate & participate in the Comstock Park Community 

Celebration.  

E. Request for Late Opening East Grand Rapids to open at 11:00 AM pm on Saturday, June 25, 

2022 to accommodate the Reeds Lake Run.  

F. Request for Late Opening East Grand Rapids to open at 11:00 AM pm on Saturday, 

September 10, 2022, to accommodate the Rhoades McKee Reeds Lake Run.  

4. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS  
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS** 
 

6. FINANCE REPORTS – April 2022* 
 

7. DIRECTOR’S REPORT – April 2022 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 

A. KDL Wonderknook PlaySpace Progress Presentation 
B. Policy Manual Section 4: Patron Behavior*     First Reading 
C. Resolution: Annual eRate  Internet Access (Category 1) *   Roll Call Vote 

9. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS** 
 

11. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

12. MEETING DATES 

Next Regular Meeting: Thursday, June 16 , 2022 – KDL Service + Meeting Center, 4:30 PM 
 

13. ADJOURNMENT*  



DRAFT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Minutes 

 

 LOCATION 

Kent District Library Service + Meeting Center, 814 West River Center Drive NE, Comstock Park, MI 

49321 and via teleconference.  

 DATE + TIME  

Thursday, April 21, 2022 at 4:30 PM. 

BOARD PRESENT: Shirley Bruursema, Peter Dykhuis, Andrew Erlewein, Sheri Gilreath-Watts, Nicole 
Lintemuth, Charles Myers, Tom Noreen and Penny Weller. 

 

BOARD ABSENT: None. 

 
STAFF PRESENT: Jaci Cooper, Jennifer DeVault, Sheri Glon (via teleconference), Randy Goble, Liz 

Guarino, Lauren Hagerman Tekelly, Kim Lindsay, Brian Mortimore, Elvia Myers, Kurt 
Stevens, Hennie Vaandrager, Lance Werner and Penni Zurgable 

 

GUESTS PRESENT: None.  
 

.. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Myers called the meeting to order at 4:30 PM. 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. CONSENT AGENDA* 

A. Approval of Agenda 

B. Approval of Minutes: March 17, 2022, Open & Closed Sessions 

C. Lakeland Library Cooperative Report: March 10, 2022  

Motion: Mr. Noreen moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. 

Support: Supported by Ms. Weller. 

RESULT: Motion carried. 

 

4. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS – None. 

 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS** – None. 

 

6. FINANCE REPORTS –March 2022* 

The Interim Director of Finance gave a brief overview of the year-to-date financials:  



DRAFT 

• For the month of March, KDL cash and investments position sits at $29.7M as compared 
to $31.5M this time last year. The Monthly Cash Position notes that KDL investment 

portfolio is down a little more than $280K from the prior year.   

• Revenues to date are at 87.6% or at $24.6M for overall expected budgeted 
amounts.  Property tax collections are substantially complete with the exception of the 
KDL final settlement with Kent County in June and the minor delinquencies that will 

come in over the next few months. 

• Expenditures to date are at $7.5M and KDL has spent just over 24% of the projected 

expenditure budget. Most line items are tracking nicely with the budget with a few line 

items being outliers due to the timing (front loaded) of expenditures.  March's 

expenditures contain the second installment of $385K to OverDrive for the digital 

collection. 

• The four largest checks for the month include the following: 

o BiblioCommons Corp. - $131,305.51 - Annual Subscriptions 

o Priority Health - $112,538.51 - March Health Insurance 

o IP Consulting - $59,997.21 - UPS purchases (eRate) & Curbside texting custom 
project fees 

o Everstream Holding, LLC - $53,361.55 - Primary internet fiber connection for 

the KDL system 

o Ingram Library Services - $50,617.83 - Collection Materials 

• There were more voided checks than usual for the month of March, for a variety of 

reasons. The first three on the list were due to old checks issued to international 

vendors where delivery of the original checks was an issue (we rarely have 

international vendors). The reissued check to a vendor was due to the vendor claiming 

they lost the check. Two of the voided checks were for an incorrect vendor name entry 

and the last one was a check that was voided due to being paid electronically 

instead.  For reference, payments are stopped in any of these types of situations when 

warranted. 

 

Motion: Mr. Dykhuis moved to receive and file the March 2022 finance reports as 

presented. 

Support: Supported by Ms. Erlewein.  

RESULT: Motion carried. 

 

7. DIRECTOR’S REPORT – March 2022 

Executive Director Lance Werner asked Director of Engagement Randy Goble to introduce 

Programming Manager Hennie Vaandrager and Director of Operations Jennifer DeVault to 

introduce Comstock Park / Plainfield Twp. Regional Manager I Penni Zurgable and Library of 

Operations Administrative Assistant Lauren Hagerman Tekelly.  

• Director of Engagement Randy Goble introduced and welcomed Programming 

Manager Hennie Vaandrager. Ms. Vaandrager has been employed with KDL for more 

than 20 years. She noted that Programming is back to pre-COVID numbers and she is 

excited for this summer.  



DRAFT 

• Director of Library Operations Jennifer DeVault introduced and welcomed Comstock 

Park / Plainfield Twp. Regional Manager I Penni Zurgable. Ms. Zurgable has been with 

KDL for more than 20 years as a Branch Librarian and most recently was a Manager-in-

Training at the Comstock Park/Plainfield Twp. Branches. Ms. DeVault also introduced 

and welcomed Library of Operation Administrative Assistant Lauren Hagerman 

Tekelly.  

 

Executive Director Werner stated that Fund Development will have a quarterly report in 

the Board Packet and, outside of KDL, municipalities are reaching out to see what 

opportunities they have to grow and develop with KDL. On Monday, April 25 KDL will be 

hosting a forum for KDL Staff and Board of Trustees Members called Asking, Listening, 

Learning, Healing and Helping, a conversation on the death of Patrick Lyoya moderated by 

Andre Daley, Director of Inclusion for the Grand Rapids Chamber of Commerce. 

 

The Board asked questions of staff and staff responded. 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. 1st Quarter Strategic Plan Update  

Director of Projects & Planning Jaci Cooper gave a 1st Quarter Strategic Plan Update.  
B. 1st Quarter KPI Review 

Director of Projects & Planning Jaci Cooper gave a 1st Quarter Key Performance Indicators 
(KPIs) Review 

C. Diversity of the Collection Audit  

Collection Services Liz Guarino gave a presentation on the Diversity of Collection Audit.  

The Board asked questions of staff and staff responded. 

D. Policy Manual Section 3: Facilities & Operations* 
Motion: Ms. Bruursema moved to approve Policy Manual Section 3: Facilities & 

Operations as presented.  

Support: Supported by Mr. Noreen.  

RESULT: Motion carried. 

 

 

9. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS – None.  

 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS** – None. 

 

11. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

 

Ms. Bruursema – Ms. Bruursema noted that the Kentwood (Richard L. Root) Branch also 

overlooks the Gerald R. Ford Airport from the second floor and she congratulated Hennie, Penni 

and Lauren.   

 



DRAFT 

Mr. Erlewein – Mr. Erlewein had a friend pass away recently and in lieu of flowers it was 

requested that funds be donated to KDL in their honor. He received a gratitude card from 

Regional Manager I Josh Bernstein and he was very appreciative.  

 

Mr. Dykhuis – Mr. Dykhuis utilized the Grandville Branch internet and he noticed that traffic has 

picked up at the library. He enjoyed watching the interactions of the families. He also 

appreciates the EDI tagging system. especially for the benefit of all patrons.  

 

Ms. Gilreath-Watts – Ms. Gilreath-Watts thanked Collection Services & Development Manager 

Liz Guraino and her team for their work in the collection in EDI. She is excited about the concert 

series that KDL has collaborated on with the Van Andel Foundation and Frederik Meijer Gardens. 

She enjoyed the PLA Conference 2022 and she walked away with a new level of understanding 

of the library world. She is also excited about Angeline Boulley, the author of Firekeeper’s 

Daughter, visiting KDL in May.  

 

Ms. Lintemuth – Ms. Lintemuth had no comments.    

 

Mr. Myers – Chair Myers attended the East Grand Rapids Board Meeting to present the KDL 

Community report.  

 

Mr. Noreen – Mr. Noreen was excited to hear about the concert series that KDL has 

collaborated on with the Van Andel Foundation and Frederik Meijer Gardens. He knows that 

this is a great opportunity for so many patrons in the community. He is excited about the EDI 

Tag collection.  

 

Ms. Weller – Ms. Weller congratulated Executive Director Lance Werner on his 11 years at KDL. 

She shared with the Board of Trustees her notes from the PLA Conference 2022 and a 

presentation on How to Build a Better Board.  

 

12. MEETING DATES 

Regular Meeting: Thursday, May 19, 2022 – Kent District Library Engelhardt Branch and via 

teleconference, 4:30 PM. 

 

13. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion: Ms. Weller moved for adjournment at 5:50 PM. 

Support: Supported by Ms. Gilreath Watts. 

RESULT: Motion carried.  

 

 



DRAFT 

  

 ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL FOR DISTRIBUTION 

 

 



1 

LAKELAND LIBRARY COOPERATIVE 
BOARD MINUTES – Unofficial 

Thursday, April 14, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. 
Kent District Library Service Center 

 
Present: Dale Parus, Peggy Hemerling, Maggie McKeithan, Diane Kooiker, Karen McKinnon, Shirley 

Bruursema, Lance Werner 

Absent: John McNaughton 

Staff Present: Carol Dawe, Sheryl VanderWagen,  

 

1) CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: The meeting was called to order at 9:30 a.m. by Dale Parus. 

There were 19 additional participants. 

2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Lance Werner moved, supported by Peggy Hemerling, to approve the 

agenda as presented - motion carried. 

3) QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS: None 

4) PUBLIC COMMENTS: There was a moment of silence in memory of Patrick Lyoya. 

5) APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Shirley Bruursema moved, supported by Karen McKinnon, to approve 

the board minutes from March 10, 2022, as presented – motion carried. 

6) FINANCIAL REPORT: 

a) March Financials and Check Register: Motion by Lance Werner, supported by Peggy 

Hemerling to approve the March financial report, check register, and pass-through transactions 

as presented – motion carried. 

b) Pass-through account discussion (ARPA Grant): Carol Dawe reported that the ARPA pass-
through reimbursements are reflected in the financial report. 

7) PRESIDENT’S REPORT: None 

8) COOPERATIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT: Carol Dawe reminded everyone to sign up for the 

ZingTrain workshop that will be held online on May 11, 2022. Cost is $15.00.  If libraries need to be 

billed for the workshop, notify Carol and she will sign up your staff members and LLC will bill you for 

those registrations. The Cooperative Directors are also working on Diversity, Equity and Inclusion 

training so they can assist their members with staff training and planning. 

9) COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a) Advisory Council Official Minutes – February 10, 2022 included in the packet for information 

b) Finance Committee – Official minutes of the June 30, 2021 meeting and the unofficial minutes 

of the April 4, 2022 meeting included in the packet for information. 

c) Personnel Committee – Official minutes of the October 15, 2021 meeting and the unofficial 

minutes of the April 4, 2022 meeting were included in the packet for information. 

10) NEW BUSINESS 

a) Budget Revisions--Motion by Peggy Hemerling, supported by Maggie McKeithan to accept the 

recommended revisions to the FY2021-2022 operating budget and capital budget as 

presented. 

11)  PUBLIC COMMENT:  None 

12)  BOARD MEMBER COMMENT: 

a)   Karen McKinnon reported that the two open house events for the Leighton Township Library 

building addition were successful.  

13)  NEXT MEETING:  Thursday, May 12, 2022, 9:30 a.m. at Kent District Library Service Center.  

14)  ADJOURNMENT:  Lance Werner moved, supported by Peggy Hemerling to adjourn at 9:46 a.m.  – 

motion carried.  

 

Respectfully submitted by, 

Sheryl VanderWagen 





 

 



 

 



         

                    

Monthly Cash Position Per Bank
Month ended April 30

2022 2021

Account Rate Amount Rate Amount

0.100% $4,657,979.23 0.000% $9,573,879.47

0.009% $10,860,536.99 0.009% $6,887,309.45

0.464% $55,888.26 0.540% $56,593.86

$11,565,543.00 0.000% $11,944,730.00

$27,139,947.48 $28,462,512.78

* Includes Trust Pooled fund balances

NOTE:  Totals do not include Petty Cash or Branch Cash drawer balances

Atlanta Capital Investments Atlanta Capital Investments

Account

Huntington Checking Account Huntington Checking Account

Huntington Investment Account Huntington Investment Account

*Kent County Pooled Funds *Kent County Pooled Funds

Checking Account 

33.64%

Investment Account

24.20%Pooled Funds 

.19%

Atlanta Capital

41.97%  

Checking Account

17.16%     

Investment 

Account

40.02%
Pooled Funds

.21%

Atlanta Capital 

42.61%  



         

                    

Monthly Revenues and Expenditures
Month ended April 30

Budget to Actual with Prior Year Comparison Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

Revenues Account Amount

2021 Actual 2021 YTD Revenues 89.3%

2022 Actual 2022 YTD Revenues 87.4%

2022 Budgeted

2021 YTD Expenditures 33.9%

Expenditures 2022 YTD Expenditures 32.3%

2021 Actual

2022 Actual

2022 Budgeted 30,888,255$                              

24,137,775$                              

24,521,394$                              

28,055,051$                              

10,324,281$                              

9,972,512$                                

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

2021
Actual

2022
Actual

2022
Budgeted

2021
Actual

2022
Actual

2022
Budgeted

M
ill
io
ns

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2021 YTD Revenues 2022 YTD Revenues 2021 YTD Expenditures 2022 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

2021

Actual

2022

Actual

2022

Budgeted

2021

Actual

2022

Actual

2022

Budgeted

M
il

li
o

n
s

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2021 YTD Revenues 2022 YTD Revenues 2021 YTD Expenditures 2022 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

























The Alpine Township Branch is well known in the community for being in a convenient

location, right off Alpine Avenue, and for personalized customer service. Patrons who come

to the Alpine Branch are greeted by librarians who know them by name, know their reading

preferences and give personalized recommendations. As a result of outstanding customer

service, the Alpine Branch has a 100% Net Promotor Score, meaning that 100% of patrons

surveyed by KDL about the Alpine Branch would recommend visiting the branch to others.

The Alpine Branch shares a building with the Alpine Township offices, so the building

serves as a township center for receiving services from the friendly township staff and

stopping to pick up the latest new book.  

 

The Tyrone Township Branch is located on Main Street in the center of Kent City. The

Branch is within walking distance of all three Kent City Schools and is usually full of teens

and tweens during the after-school hours. The library was founded in Kent City in 1935 and

it has been an important part of the history of the city. The library shares a building with

the Kent City Historical Museum and it continues to help bridge the gap between

preserving the past and serving our community’s youngest residents. Branch Librarian

Katie Mitchell is currently working with the historical society to digitize their collection so

that historical photographs are easily accessible to the community and schools.  

The Walker Branch is in the heart of the Walker City Complex. The complex includes Walker

Ice and Fitness Center, City offices, police and fire, a park and soccer fields. The complex is

the community hub, where families can watch their kids play soccer, go to the park, or

even go ice skating before stopping in at the library for one of our five weekly storytimes.

The Walker Branch frequently partners with the City of Walker for large community events,

most recently, the city Easter Egg Hunt which was attended by about 1000 people. This

summer, plans are underway for the first Summer Wonder Kick-off Carnival in two years.

The carnival will take place surrounding the library, on Monday, June 6th from 4:30-6:30.

The Walker Branch appreciates the partnership of the city in these and other events! 

 

Director's Report
As a 20 branch library system serving over 400,000 constituents across 26 municipalities, one of
the amazing things about KDL is that Kent County residents can expect a curated experience in
terms of collection, customer service, and programming and services while also honoring the
unique communities where each branch exists. 

APRIL  2022

ALPINE, TRYONE + WALKER



Alto Branch is truly an extension of patrons’ living rooms. Most patrons are not only greeted by name, but

also with a personal question as to how they are doing. It is amazing how well the Alto staff get to know

their patrons on a personal level and vice versa. One of Alto’s featured April displays was about autism.

Some of the featured titles were based on patrons' suggestions. The book club that branch librarian Deb

Schultz hosts have really taken off. She started only offering it quarterly, but due to high demand, it has

been switched to monthly. 

 

The Englehardt Branch in Lowell is in the heart of the city, right on the Riverwalk. People are always out

for a stroll and stop at their local library.   The Englehardt branch hosts several book clubs. They started

with one in the morning, called Bookworms hosted by Branch librarian Lynda Austin. As demand grew,

other times and places were added. Branch Librarian Jessica McLeod-Sopzynski hosts an evening called

Night Owls and a book club at Senior Neighbors. The popular Cookbook Club will be restarting soon. This

is where patrons check out a cookbook, make one of the recipes, and then get together and share their

creations.  

ALTO + ENGLEHARDT



BYRON + GRANDVILLE
There are a lot of things that make the Byron Township Branch special and unique.  The comfortable

atmosphere, the great displays, and the friendly staff are all important aspects of what make the Byron

Township Branch unique. However, the Branch is particularly known in the community for the children's

programming and play space.  Storytimes and children's programming is always packed to the point that we

often have to offer them twice just to accommodate all of the people who wish to attend. For most little ones

a trip to the branch is never complete without finding “Miss Dawn” (Branch Librarian Dawn Heerspink) to say

hello. 

 

The Grandville Branch is known for many things, but at the moment the Branch's claim to fame is a new and

exciting space.  With the building project complete inside and outside the Downtown Development Authority

project nearing completion, everyone is excited to see and use the new spaces.  Requests to rent the

community rooms are coming faster than staff can keep up with, and the study rooms are full most of the

day.  The staff enjoys showing the building off and love using the addition for programming and events.  In

the last 2 weeks, the Branch hosted close to 200 people for a community reads author event and close to

2000 in conjunction with an Art and Chocolate walk hosted by the city. Each person coming in the doors was

excited to see the new building. 



One of the most exciting additions to the Cascade Township Branch over the past

year has been the Marion Robinson Memorial fish tank. The staff and the patrons all

enjoy watching the fish swim around and feast at the 11:00 am fish feedings.

Recently, Branch Outreach and Programming Specialist (BOPS) Ashley Smolinski

has been working to train the fish to follow as she reads them board books. This is

an attempt to see if the library can use the fish to promote the 1000 Books Before

Kindergarten program; children could use their library visit as a time to read some

of their 1000 books to the fish. One child recently remarked: “The library gets you in

with the books, but then keeps you with the fish!” The attached picture was

captured at the library Stuffed Animal Sleepover.  

 

The Caledonia Township Branch is becoming known for its expanded STEAM Zone

(Science, Technology, Engineering, Art, Mathematics). Under the direction of

Branch Librarian, Audrey Barker, this area has begun to offer multiple STEAM

stations, including a station for “little scientists”. This has become a hot spot for

families with children of all ages. This is especially true for Tuesday and Thursday

afternoon STEAM Zones hosted by  Branch Librarians Audrey Baker and  Ashley

Geglio.  Branch Librarian Alyson Cryderman is working on creating a special

Reading Nook at the Branch for the Summer Wonder season as well.  

CALEDONIA + CASCADE

COMSTOCK PARK + PLAINFIELD
The Plainfield and Comstock Park Branches are both integral parts of

Plainfield Township. At the Plainfield Township Branch, the

renowned Friends of the library used bookstore is a destination for

book lovers throughout the township. The library is currently

displaying the impressive artwork of elementary school students

from the Northview Public School District. Students and parents are

delighted to see the artwork framed in the library’s lobby, and the

library is thrilled to have the vibrant paintings light up the library.  

Librarians at the Comstock Park Branch frequently serve the

community by leaving the library. The Youth Librarians visit local

schools to promote literacy and talk books. Branch Librarian Lisa

Rodkey also spent some time at the York Creek Egg Hunt, helping

with crafts and talking to residents about the library. Branch

Librarian Paula Wright spent some time with the Golden Panthers as

they met Officer Julie Brown and the amazing school therapy dog,

Parker. 



COLLECTION DEVELOPMENT 

The Collection Development team has been including Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion metadata tags in the
catalog for all materials they have purchased since March. Collection Development Librarian Marie Mulder
trained Branch Librarian’s on the Task and Research Board to add tags to the existing Adult Fiction collection
which they completed in the Fall of 2021, and they are currently tagging all other collections with an
expected completion date of August 2022.  

Collection Development Librarian Alison Kuchta led a team to bring the streaming film service Kanopy to
KDL’s patrons. Since its launch in February, 3,061 patrons have created user accounts and over 73,000 have
visited the app.  

Collection Development Librarian Tammy Schneider led the Youth and Teen Core Project in determining 50
youth and teen titles that are easy to recommend and giving them the designation of KDL CORE. These can
be easily identified by a KDL CORE sticker. Collection Services team members Seth Hoekstra, Laurie Winkler,
Rachel Cruzan, Megan Versluis and Yuko Roberts set up spaces for receiving the 4,000 books, and a process
for cataloging and packaging them for branch delivery in mid-May. These books will help supplement the
regular collection, boosting circulation for Summer Wonder.  

Collection Services 

Collection Services staff have had a busy year so far, cataloging and processing 44,000 new items for patrons.
In the department, we refer to this as making regular books into library books – adding all the KDL stickers
and labels as well as adding the book to our catalog. 

MelCat borrowing and lending continue to keep them busy. This year KDL patrons have borrowed 12,313
books from libraries across the state and we’ve loaned 9,874.  

Collection Services Assistants sorted 40,000 bags of delivery in 2022, and at the end of 2021, a team including
Terri Goff, Janine Elliot, Jill Essenberg, Judy Pawloski and Jessine VanLopik began looking at ways to
streamline the process for efficiency and safety. The team was able to recommend using tables instead of
carts and engage the use of hydraulic carts for less heavy lifting. 

Integrated Library System 

Systems Librarian Analyst, Rochelle Ball recently made some changes in Workflows so that patrons with
Teacher Cards will be able to check out Beyond Books items and Perk Passes to visit local attractions like
Meijer Gardens. Rochelle has also been working with Sirsi Dynix to build a custom weeding report that will
run as part of the daily paging list.  

Featured Department
Collection Development + Services



The bookmobile team took the KDL Lab tub of Ozobots to the Kent County Juvenile Detention Center
during spring break. All expressed their appreciation and enjoyment of learning to code the mini-robots
to follow their color-coded directions. Several teens said the librarian visit was the best time they had
that week and said they hoped they would visite again. Here is a sampling of the Ozobot routes the
teens created.

To celebrate the US college championship paper airplane competition, the bookmobile team
challenged the Afghanistan refugee boys at Bethany Bridgeway, along with their teachers and
translators to a KDL mini-competition. The translators won the longest distance, and a 12-year-old
student kept his plane aloft for a respectable 7 seconds. If you observe Bookmobile Librarians Kelaine
Mish and Joyanne Huston - Swanson launching paper planes in the bookmobile garage, they are
attempting to bring respect back to KDL.

The bookmobile wrapped up the monthly visits with the 4th and 5th graders at Explorer Elementary in
Kentwood. The school media center librarian requested the bookmobile visit as the school has no
upper elementary chapter books in their school library. The bookmobile team enjoyed creating several
reader advisory book talk videos for the students. And while the visits were often cold and windy, seeing
the grins on the student's faces as they ran back to the building with the latest Babysitter's Club or
Stuart Gibbs book was priceless.

OUTREACH 
A P R I L   2 0 2 2

BOOKMOBILE



The 2022 KDL Seed Library provided 6,361 packets of seeds to thousands of families throughout Kent
County. As a result, KDL patrons were able to beautify their yards with bright summer flowers and have access
to fresh fruits, vegetables and herbs grown right in their own gardens. The KDL Seed Library is located at all 20
branches and the Bookmobile to provide critical nutritional support and enjoyment to patrons of all ages.
Caledonia Assistant Branch Librarian Samantha Holland shares, “Our community has been so happy to have the
seeds. I’ve seen everyone from kiddos to seniors get excited and grateful for the KDL Seed Library.” This impact
was made possible through the support of 44 volunteers, including KDL patrons, staff, friends of the library,
GVSU Thompson Scholars and members of Wild Ones – River City. 

This year is the 20th anniversary of the Write Michigan Teen Poetry Contest. It had a record number of 562
written submissions from nearly 400 students representing fifty area schools. Thirty-five teens participated in
the slams, which were held at the Kentwood  (RichardL. Root)  Branch. Kenowa Hills High School student  Zoe
Paskewicz was a winner in the written contest, and she has won in the slam and/or written portion every year
she has participated. Zoe says, “The Teen Poetry Slam helped me find my voice. Having participated in it every
year that it has run has allowed me to believe more in the power of my words and the strength of my emotions. I
originally started writing years ago as an emotional outlet for my trauma, because I didn’t have the words to
explain my emotions verbally. Thanks to this slam, I’ve become so much more confident. I’ve made friends,
used my words to help others express the emotions they don’t have the words to explain verbally, and even self-
published multiple collections of my work by the end of my junior year of high school. I couldn’t be more
grateful for this slam.”  

Looking ahead to an amazing summer! The Programming Department has worked hard getting contracts in
place and schedules set. KDL has 1,140 programs scheduled including the Native American Dancers performing
at the Cascade Township and Grandville Branches. Branch staff are out promoting Summer Wonder in the
schools and getting their Teen Crews in place. The excitement is palpable as we look to getting back to what we
do best – supporting kids and families during this stretch of time spent out of school. Summer is when our
libraries shine! 

 PROGRAMMING
A P R I L   2 0 2 2



Katie Kudos 
WINNERS FOR APRIL 2022

DANA BANKS

KRAUSE MEMORIAL

NOMINATED BY LAURA YOUELLS

POSITIVE

BECAUSE ..."Dana is such a hard worker, and

willing to help with anything! Recently, I had her

look for some items on missing / staff review lists

to play catch up from a few months back. Not only

did she agree, but she was also happy to do so! I

appreciate her positive attitude. I'm so glad she is

part of the team!"

KATI DOERING

PATRON SERVICES

NOMINATED BY MORGAN HANKS

POSITIVE

BECAUSE..."You know the saying "when the going gets

tough, the tough get going"? That is the Patron

Services Department. I am consistently amazed at

what this team can do. For the past week, the software

we rely on to triage and answer our calls, Finesse, has

been going in and out. This software is essential to our

workflow, and yet the team made the inconsistent and

wild west of calls work. They took turns trying to log in

and anyone who was able to answer would jump on

phones. They worked as a true team to give our

patrons the best customer service possible. I don't

think our patrons even noticed the chaos behind the

scenes. And through it all, they found a way to make it

fun by creating Finesse error bingo boards and

maintaining a relentlessly positive attitude. I am so

grateful to know and work with all of you. Special

shoutout to Dhanya, an honorary member of our team,

who worked tirelessly to help restore our access!"  

AND 

NOMINATED BY OLIVIA YEADON

INCLUSIVE

BECAUSE..."Kati works really hard to cultivate a work

culture that is kind, empathetic, and inclusive. She

looks at KDL policies and procedures with a fine-tooth

comb to make sure they are accessible and reasonable

for everyone. She is such a great co-worker and

friend!"

GWEN GENZINK 

CASCADE TOWNSHIP

NOMINATED BY CODY KETCHUM

HELPFUL

BECAUSE..."This morning at CAS we were pretty busy

with delivery and returns. Gwen didn't hesitate to offer

her help when she saw how busy the workroom was.

Thank you, Gwen, for your attentiveness and your

thoughtfulness."

AND 

NOMINATED RANYA HWAIL

POSITIVE 

BECAUSE..."Gwen is a beam of light! When I come into

work, I always get excited to see Gwen and have a

touching and deep chat with Gwen. She is caring and

thoughtful. On one of my bad days last week, she took

the time to listen to me and shared positive thoughts

and advice. Thank you!"



Upcoming Meetings
+ Dates of Interest

Upcoming Meetings 

Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, June 16, 2022
4:30 PM 
KDL Service + Meeting Center

Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, July 21,  2022
4:30 PM 
KDL Service + Meeting Center

Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, August 18, 2022
4:30 PM 
KDL Service + Meeting Center

Dates of Interest

ALA Annual Conference 

June 23-28, 2022

Washington, DC 

KDL Pension Meeting

August 17, 2022

1:00 PM 

KDL Service + Meeting Center



NEW
!

APRIL�2022

At risk—budget, scope, timeline

NEW
!

MONTHLY�PROJECT�REPORT

Projects in approval queue

Declined

New projects approved

15
3

2
Active Approved  

Projects

On track Paused/cancelled—being redefined or stopped

Completed since 01/22

Late (At Risk)

On Time

Project Lead: Sara Proaño
Status: On track

Approval Date: 04.27.22
Due Date: 10.31.22

Many new parents and caregivers are unaware of the invaluable services a library has to offer to babies,
parents and newborns, many of them not utilizing the library until their children are at least school-
aged, if at all. By partnering with HealthNet West Michigan to provide early literacy resources to new
and growing families, both those without insurance and insured by Medicaid, the library is poised to
connect more children with crucial literacy resources early on in their life than ever before. Qualifying
families will receive a baby board book with information about KDL's programs and services for early
literacy. This project will run as a pilot for 2022 and, if successful, may be sustained through 2023 and
beyond by seeking corporate sponsorship.

Books�for�Newborns

Project Lead: Randy Goble
Status: On track

Approval Date: 04.27.22
Due Date: 10.31.22

2020 U.S. Census data estimates that 11.1% of people in Kent County are living in poverty; that is, 11.1%
of people are living at or below the average estimated income needed to support their basic needs
according to their household size. This leaves little room in the budget for entertainment and leisure,
two aspects of the human experience that are all too often forgotten when it comes to fostering a
healthy lifestyle grounded in joy and rest. With this in mind, Frederik Meijer Gardens (FMG) expressed
interest in providing select participants with free access to their summer concert series (comprised of
30 events, June through September) and has chosen to partner with KDL to make it happen. Sponsored
by the Steve and Amy Van Andel Foundation, FMG and KDL will provide qualifying program attendees
with tickets to their summer concerts, including food vouchers as well as  transportation to and from
the venue.

Concerts�for�the�Community



NEW
!

Project Lead: Morgan Hanks
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 04.27.22
Due Date: 11.15.22

KDL currently does not offer a consistent approach to onboarding new cardholders, creating ample
opportunity for better processes and procedures. The main goal of this project will be to focus on
developing a larger base of strong library advocates among patrons, as opposed to a huge number of
passive library users. To do so, the project team will revamp the existing new cardholder orientation
and onboarding process and make it more celebratory, exciting and informative. A viable new process
may include: identifying areas of patron interest upon sign up, training staff to promote materials of
interest, giving patrons a tour, and promoting branch-specific "member perks" to build awareness of
KDL's many services and programs. All of this will serve to build strong and lasting relationships within
the community and among patrons.

New�Cardholder�Onboarding

Project Lead: Liz Guarino-Kozlowicz
Status: On track

Approval Date: 02.02.22
Due Date: 08.31.22

An official project kick-off meeting occurred on Monday, April 18. There, small groups were established 
 and tasked with tackling two core parts of the charter: (1) examining holds and express-to-circulating
ratios and (2) re-writing the Purchasing Procedure. Both small groups have met and will be providing
draft documents and recommendations at the team's next meeting in May.

Circulation�Moonshot:�Collection�Purchasing�Philosophy

Project Lead: Jared Seigel + Shelby Toren
Status: On track

Approval Date: 06.30.21
Due Date: 05.31.22

Now that Project Leads Jared Seigel and Shelby Toren have touched base with each and every branch
champion, branches are making steady progress on implementing the new displays and merchandizing
standards.  The project team is currently determining how many book supports each branch will need
and plans to begin ordering them soon, though this is contingent upon availability. Next, the team will
work with project stakeholders to determine how to best move forward with furniture purchasing.

Circulation�Moonshot:�Displays�+�Merchandising

Circulation�Moonshot:�Weeding�Standards
Project Lead: Liz Guarino-Kozlowicz
Status: On track

Approval Date: 06.30.21
Due Date: 05.31.22

 

As of April 25, the Alpine Township, Tyrone Township and Walker branches began using the new
weeding procedures, meaning all branches within the KDL system are now up to speed on Circulation
Moonshot's newly established weeding expectations: weeding by condition upon check-in and
weeding via the daily paging report based on criteria the project team identified. Branches will be
compiling initial weeding statistics until mid-May. Additionally, measures for accountability are being
developed and implemented. A roll-out of specific weeding reports regarding shelf allocation will begin
at the end of May with Alpine Township, Caledonia Township and Cascade Township serving as pilot
branches.



Project Lead: Morgan Hanks
Status: At Risk - Timeline

Approval Date: 10.20.21
Due Date: new due date 06.15.22

Curbside Texting and Interactive Voice Response (IVR) went live at Cascade on Monday, April 18 with
only a few "bumps in the road" needing attention. As of this report, all bugs have been fixed and
everything is working as it should. A Curbside Texting marketing push is set for the coming weeks. In
the meantime, the team looks forward to talking about possible post-pilot interest.

Curbside�Texting�+�Interactive�Voice�Response�(IVR)

Project Lead: Tammy Schneider
Status: On track

Approval Date: 10.20.21
Due Date: 05.31.22

All Youth and Teen CORE collection materials are now on order, many having already arrived, and
Collection Services is hard at work processing and cataloging them all. A patron-facing Youth + Teen
CORE brochure will be placed in all branches with an overview of all the titles that made the cut.
Additionally, a chart with Common Sense Media’s ratings and comments has been created to help staff
assist patrons who are concerned about content. Webmaster Remington Steed is currently putting the
final touches on the CORE webpage and MarCom is promoting the new offering via social media posts
and a feature in the Summer Kaleidoscope. This project is set to be completed on or before the target
date of June 1, just in time for Summer Wonder.

Circulation�Moonshot:�Youth�+�Teen�CORE�Collection

Project Lead: Scott Ninemeier + Sheri Glon
Status: On track

Approval Date: 03.02.22
Due Date: 08.31.22

The Data Dashboard team has now entered the "heavy lifting" portion of the project. Over the last two
meetings, the team has identified six Key Performance Indicators that will be on the Operational Data
Dashboard. This dashboard will set the template for what can and cannot be done using BlueCloud
Analytics. The next series of meetings will include a deep dive into each KPI to consider what
information needs to be included on the dashboard, how to best display the information and, most
importantly, how to get the information. The first metric will be built out in BlueCloud Analytics this
month, which will give us a better idea of what is needed to bring this project in on time.

Data�Dashboard�Phase�1

Project Lead: Tammy Schneider
Status: On track

Approval Date: 03.24.21
Due Date: 12.31.22

EDI�Collection�Audit�/�Tagging�(Phase�2)�

Tagging of the Adult Nonfiction collection is nearly complete. Collection Development Librarian Marie
Mulder has delegated tasks regarding tags on the Juvenile Non-Fiction collection, which the task and
research board members are hard at work completing. Several project team members have joined since
this project's inception, replacing departing members, which should expedite the process toward
completion. 



Project Lead: Hennie Vaandrager
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 02.02.22
Due Date: 08.31.22

Legal Aid of Western Michigan recently received a grant that will allow them to continue this work over
the next three years, something that KDL will take into consideration as it completes initial goals and
deliverables associated with this project. The first Expungement Fair took place at the Center for
Community Transformation on May 7 from 9:00 AM to 3:00 PM and included partner organizations
NAACP, Literacy Center of West Michigan, West Michigan Works, Hispanic Center, Heart of West
Michigan United Way, and Safe & Just Michigan. Beyond this event, KDL will continue working with
LAWM to schedule "awareness events" at select KDL branches in future seasons.

Expungement�Fair�with�Legal�Aid�of�Western�Michigan

Project Lead: Elvia Myers
Status: On track

Approval Date: 03.02.22
Due Date: 12.31.22

The project team has met several times over the last month to discuss and determine the full scope of
complexity for this project. This has involved establishing a baseline understanding around email
groups, distribution lists and the full Microsoft Office Suite. Right now, KDL has around 750 individual
email addresses, many of them abandoned or redundant. The team has been asked to create a set of
standards moving forward that will not only guide how groups and emails are created in the future, but
will address how to best "clean up" the existing groups and emails in the present.

Email�Group�Streamline�+�Update

Project Lead: Hannah Moeggenborg
Status: On track

Approval Date: 01.19.22
Due Date: 04.30.22

Hygiene Lockers are live! The lockers, initial supplies and signage have now been shipped out to all
branches. Though the team did run into a few issues concerning supply chain ordering, the team hopes
that most if not all materials will have arrived at every branch by mid-May. Project Sponsor Christine
Mwangi and Project Lead Hannah Moeggenborg will continue to seek partnerships with area
organizations in order to fund and stock the lockers for the long-term.

Hygiene�Lockers

Project Lead: Tammy Schneider
Status: Completed

Approval Date: 01.05.22
Due Date: new due date 04.30.22

Desktop and mobile versions of the app went live as of April 1. All frontline staff completed a training
checklist to familiarize themselves with the new service. Library Ideas, the iVox vendor, has also
provided stickers for promoting the iVox App, which will be affixed to all Vox Books and Wonderbooks
within the collection. Project team members Kevin Kammeraad and Sydney Khouri have also created a
promotional video to be played in the branches throughout the launch.

iVox�App

https://www.libraryideas.com/vox-books
https://playaway.com/wonderbook/


Project Lead: Remington Steed
Status: At Risk - Timeline

Approval Date: 11.29.21
Due Date: 04.22.22

The KDL App is now available in Apple's App Store and Google Play Store! Interested users can find it by
searching for “Kent District Library” via their device of choice. A direct link to the app is also available by
visiting kdl.org/app. Public promotion begins Monday, May 9 via the KDL website, social media and 
 Bookmobile handouts, an email campaign and targeted receipts. Additionally, promotional buttons
will be delivered to all branches for frontline staff to wear. Our ultimate goal is to have 1,000 active
users by June 9 and 3,600 active users by the end of 2022.

KDL�Mobile�App

Project Lead: Jennifer DeVault + Lulu Brown
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 03.02.22
Due Date: 11.15.22

As this project officially kicks off and gets under way, every branch has been asked to identify one or two
"KDL Way Champions" among their branch staff. These are employees who already embody KDL's Core
Values and who can act as "cheerleaders" amongst their colleagues, to spur others on toward excellent
customer service. In addition to the project team, these champions will also attend project meetings
and will report information and expectations back to their branch, introduce new customer service
concepts in huddles and provide general encouragement throughout the cultural shift. 

KDL�Way�Service�Vision�+�Training

Rehmann�-�Finance�Department�Audit
Project Lead: Kim Lindsay
Status: At Risk - Timeline

Approval Date: 11.02.20
Due Date: new due date 5.31.22

 

As the Finance Department prepares to roll out new communications concerning Staples purchases at
the start of May, the hope is that successful implementation of these new processes will organically lead
into similar implementation of new processes for Amazon as well. Additionally, Finance will also be
presenting a "decision tree" and a revised branch purchasing process at an upcoming All Managers
Meeting in May.

Project Lead: Missy Lancaster / Abby Black
Status: On track

Approval Date: 09.23.21
Due Date: 11.30.22

All branches and facilities have now signed off on the designs and installation plans for the
Wonderknook pieces and TMC has started production on standard pieces such as kitchens, play tables,
stools and chairs. Staff are extremely excited with the designs and some Friends groups are even
donating money to get a few extra pieces. The final TMC renderings will be presented at the May KDL
Board of Trustees meeting.

Systemwide�WonderKnook�Refresh

https://kdl.org/app/


Project Lead: Brad Baker
Status: On track

 

Approval Date: 12.29.21
Due Date: 04.30.22

At the beginning of May, the traveling exhibit of Pam VanderPloeg's work was at last transferred over to
the Kentwood Branch for display. Regional Manager Cheryl Cammenga recommended this be done
sooner rather than later as it was a good opportunity to share the display with interested area teachers.
The project team is hard at work brainstorming how these displays may be adapted for future exhibits,
including student artwork and other partnerships. As of now, the plan is to coordinate display with
StorySTROLL programming in the fall, which will also align nicely with ArtPrize traffic.

Traveling�Exhibits

BUILDING�PROJECTS

Project Lead: Missy Lancaster
Status: On track

Approval Date: 2020
Due Date: new due date 05.31.22

Service�+�Meeting�Center

Project Lead: Jennifer German
Status: N/A

Approval Date: N/A
Due Date: N/A

Plans for a Krause Memorial Branch expansion project are now moving forward! The City of Rockford,
along with the Algoma, Cannon and Courtland Townships have started planning a robust fundraising
campaign and Contractor ProgressiveAE is developing new renderings and preliminary plans. Rockford
City Manager Thad Beard would like to have the expansion project completed and open to the public in
three years. Director of Branch Operations Jennifer DeVault and Regional Manager Jennifer German met
with the architect in late April.

Krause�Memorial

Construction has officially finished at the Service Center! Though the Bruursema Board Room, HR
Conference Room, Learning Lab and Corner Conference Room are awaiting delivery of furniture and an
exact installation date is yet unknown, Project Lead Missy Lancaster remains hopeful that items will
arrive in the next few months. The process has been long and an inconvenient at times, but seeing the
finished spaces and beautiful lobby mural have made it all worth it.

Project Lead: Liz Knapp
Status: N/A

Approval Date: N/A
Due Date: N/A

The Township has decided to pause on the new building project at this time due to high construction
prices. In the meantime, they are instead focusing efforts on needed updates to the current building,
including ADA-compliant power door operators for accessibility and updating lighting and restrooms. 
  

Tyrone�Township

The City of Walker Engineer Scott Connors has begun to reach out to contacts and discuss options about
adding on and expansion of the current library building. The city is then preparing an RFP.  
  

Project Lead: Craig Buno
Status: N/A

Approval Date: N/A
Due Date: N/A

Walker



    

 

 

  

• 

• 

• 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 
 

 

 

 

 



     

 

    

 

  

 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800



     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6193785
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6456071
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6080647
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3707522
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3707522
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3994890
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6328988
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6079650
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6079650
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5305833
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3706353
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3706353
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5442804
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C438187
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C816741
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C816741
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C815039
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C839135
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C839135
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C780924
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C822034
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C811915
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C811915
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C833681
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C816725
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C798102
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C798102
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C645530
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C645530
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C877272
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C856920
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C863586
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C863586
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C877273
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C839135
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C839135
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C860257
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C839164
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C843423
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C522279
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C522279
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/7115460
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3022540
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3022540
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5808556
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/2461050
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6197160
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6384353
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3041835
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3041835
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6225852
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6384117
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6384117
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6415110


  
STAFF CHANGES & ANNIVERSARIES 

May 2022 
 

 

 
 

OPEN POSITIONS TYPE 

Shelver – Cascade Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – East Grand Rapids Part-time 

Branch Librarian – Amy Van Andel / Ada Full-time 

Regional Manager I – Kentwood/Gaines Township Full-time 

Volunteer Coordinator Full-time 

Branch Librarian – Grandville Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Krause Memorial Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Caledonia Part-time 

Branch Librarian – Englehardt Part-time 

Branch Librarian – Gaines Township Part-time 

Branch Librarian – Kentwood Part-time 

Seasonal Library Interns (19 positions) Temporary 

Assistant Branch Librarian – East Grand Rapids Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Grandville Part-time 

Branch Librarian – Kentwood (2 positions) Part-time 

NEW HIRES POSITION EFFECTIVE 

Stephanie Groen Shelver – Wyoming April 25 

Rebecca Behrens Shelver – Plainfield April 25 

Mae Fletcher Shelver – Wyoming April 25 

Oryan Hammond Shelver – Krause Memorial May 2 

Kiley Pawneshing Assistant Branch Librarian – Kentwood May 11 

Sarah Foster Collection Services Assistant – Service Center June 8 

PROMOTIONS & 
TRANSFERS 

FROM TO EFFECTIVE 

Josh Mosey 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
– Caledonia 

Digital Marketing Strategist – 
Marketing/Communications 

May 9 

Christine Hekman 
Branch Librarian – 
Grandville 

Branch Librarian – Kentwood May 16 

Anne Schroeder 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
– Krause Memorial 

Assistant Branch Librarian 
Sub 

June 3 



 
 

 

 

 
 

EMPLOYEE ANNIVERSARIES 
(JUNE) 

BRANCH OR DEPARTMENT LENGTH OF SERVICE 

Kris Vogelar Grandville 37 years 

Karen Small Wyoming/Kelloggsville 36 years 

Tisha Wells Gaines Township 34 years 

Kathy Potts Walker 31 years 

Jocelyn Yost Grandville 28 years 

Connie Wheat Krause Memorial 22 years 

Lynne Eder Walker 17 years 

Deb Den Herder Cascade 15 years 

Amy Waite Krause Memorial 14 years 

Shannon Vanderhyde Krause Memorial 11 years 

Linda Pyne Nelson Township/Sand Lake 10 years 

Adam Flynn Cascade 8 years 

Liz Knapp Alpine/Tyrone Township/Walker 8 years 

Paula Wright Comstock Park 6 years 

Catherine Gutowski Alto 5 years 

Leigh Verburg Comstock Park 5 years 

Brad Baker Marketing/Communications 4 years 

Julie Gillich Byron Township 4 years 

Heather Blake Grandville 3 years 

Alyssa Coe Plainfield 3 years 

Tabitha Schaub Wyoming 3 years 

Sarah Johnston Patron Services 2 years 

Rebecca Avella Walker 1 year 

Brandy Boyington Sub Pool 1 year 

Sandy Feutz Plainfield 1 year 

Rachel Minor Wyoming 1 year 

  

DEPARTURES POSITION EFFECTIVE 

Kate Cousins Assistant Branch Librarian - Cascade May 13 

Shannon O’Rourke Kasali Branch Librarian - Kentwood June 1 

Lynda Austin Branch Librarian - Englehardt June 4 

Catherine Campbell Assistant Branch Librarian - Grandville June 6 



 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES ATTENDANCE - 2022 

*BOARD PARTICIPATION VIA TELECONFERENCE 

TRUSTEE NAME MEETING DATE  

 
 

TRUSTEE NAME MEETING DATE 

    

    

    

     

 

 
SHIRLEY 

BRUURSEMA 
ANDREW 

ERLEWEIN 
PETER  

DYKHUIS 

SHERI 
GILREATH-

WATTS 

 

NICOLE 
LINTEMUTH 

CHARLES 
MYERS 

 

TOM 
NOREEN 

PENNY 
WELLER 

January 20, 2022 X X X X X X X X 

February 17, 2022 X X X X X X* X X 

March 17, 2022 X X X X X X X X 

April 21, 2022 X X X X X X X X 

May 19, 2022         

June 16, 2022         

July 21, 2022         

August 18, 2022         

September 22, 2022         

October 13, 2022         

October 27, 2022         

November 17, 2022         

December 15, 2022         



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

 
  

 

POLICY MANUAL 
Section 4: Patron Behavior edits



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

  



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

PATRON BEHAVIOR  

 
 

PATRON  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

4 



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

PATRON BEHAVIOR , cont.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

KDL POLICY 4.1 

SAFETY + PERSONAL BEHAVIOR 

.

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.1 

VIOLATIONS OF LAW 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.2 

WEAPONS 

KDL POLICY 4.1.3 

DRUGS, ALCOHOL + SMOKING 

 



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

KDL POLICY 4.1.4 

ANIMALS 

KDL POLICY 4.1.5 

PERSONAL PROPERTY 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

 



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

KDL POLICY 4.1.6 

BLOCKING OF AISLES, DOORS + ENTRANCES 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.7 

STAFF-ONLY AREAS 

KDL POLICY 4.1.8 

INTERFERENCE WITH STAFF 

KDL POLICY 4.1.9 

UNAUTHORIZED USE 

 



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

KDL POLICY 4.1.10 

CONSIDERATE USE 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 

KDL POLICY 4.1.11 

NOISE 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.12  

ODOR 

 
  



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.14 

FOOD + DRINK 

 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.15 

RESTROOMS 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.16 

DRESS CODE 

 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.17 

HARRASSMENT 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.18 

IDENTIFICATION 

 

 
  



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.19 

RECREATIONAL EQUIPMENT + PERSONAL TRANSPORT DEVICES 

 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.20 

PANHANDLING, SOLICITATION + SELLING 

 

 
  



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.21 

CAMPAIGNING, PETITIONING, INTERVIEWING, ETC. 

 

a. 
b. 

c. 

d. 
e. 

  



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

KDL POLICY 4.1.22 

CHILDREN IN THE LIBRARY 

 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

KDL POLICY 4.1.23 

FACE MASK REQUIREMENT DURING PANDEMIC 

Formatted: Font: Bold, Condensed by  0.05 pt

https://www.michigan.gov/coronavirus/0,9753,7-406-98178_98455-533660--,00.html
https://d4804za1f1gw.cloudfront.net/wp-content/uploads/sites/88/2020/08/10115810/Library-Patron-Responsibilities.pdf
https://d4804za1f1gw.cloudfront.net/wp-content/uploads/sites/88/2020/08/10115810/Library-Patron-Responsibilities.pdf
https://www.kdl.org/sites/default/files/kdl-policy-manual.pdf
https://www.kdl.org/sites/default/files/kdl-policy-manual.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/about-face-coverings.html


 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

LIBRARY PATRON RESPONSIBILITIES



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

KDL POLICY 4.2 

USE + PRESERVATION OF LIBRARY MATERIALS + PROPERTY 

 

KDL POLICY 4.2.1 

COPYRIGHT POLICY 

 



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

KDL POLICY 4.3 

ACCEPTABLE TECHNOLOGY USE 

 



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

a. 

b. 

1. 
2. 

3. 

4. 
5. 



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

 

  



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

KDL POLICY 4.3.1 

PHOTOGRAPHY + RECORDING POLICY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

KDL POLICY 4.3.2 

SOCIAL NETWORKING POLICY 

 

• 

• 

• 

Commented [RG1]: Our attorney advises that we return 
to obtaining written consent for photography that we use 
for promotional purposes. A new employee policy will be 
written for this. 



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

KDL POLICY 4.4 

DISCIPLINARY PROCESS FOR LIBRARY FACILITIES 

A. 

B. 

1. 

2. 

C. 

1. 



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

2. 



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 

 

KDL POLICY 4.5 

RIGHT OF APPEAL 



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
 

 
 



RESOLUTION 
Schools & Libraries Universal Services (eRate) for 2022-2023 

 
 

 MEETING INFORMATION 

A regular meeting of the Library Board (the “Board”) of the Kent District Library (the “Library”) was held 

at the Kent District Library – Engelhardt Branch, on May 19, 2022 at 4:30 PM. 

The meeting was called to order by . 

PRESENT:____________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:        __________________________________________________________________________ 

 RESOLUTION 
With the assistance of Kellogg & Sovereign Consulting (E-Rate Advisors), KDL has filed FCC Form 471, Schools and 

Libraries Universal Service Program Services Ordered and Certification Form for the services and/or products as 

detailed in the table below titled, “E-Rate Requests, Funding Year for 07/01/2022-06/30/2023.  

 

Be it resolved that the governing board for Kent District Library 

 

 

1. Vote to approve or disapprove Resolution for Schools and Libraries Universal Services (E-Rate) 

for 2022-2023. This resolution authorizes filing of the form 471 applications for funding year 

2022-2023 and the payment of the applicant’s share upon approval of funding and receipt of 

services.  

 

2. Authorizes the filing of FCC Form 471, Schools and Libraries Universal Service Program Services 

Ordered and Certification Form for the services and/or products as detailed in the attached 

report, “E-Rate Requests, FY 2023”, for the fiscal year 07/01/2022-06/30/2023.  

 

3. Authorizes payment of the applicant’s share subject to the following conditions: 

(1) approval of funding of the discounted portion by the Schools and Libraries Division (SLD) of 

the Universal Service Administrative Company (USAC) and 

(2) receipt of services during the fiscal year 07/01/2022-06/30/2023.  

 

Application # Pre-Discount 

Amount 

E-Rate Amount Applicant’s 

Share 

211012456 $857,551.92 $771,796.73 $85,755.19 

Totals $857,551.92 $771,796.73 $85,755.19 

 

 

  



E-Rate Requests, Funding Year for 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2023 

 

Applicant Name: KENT DISTRICT LIBRARY 

Billed Entity #: 131573 

 
 

 

The Board hereby approves and adopts the tentative Schools & Libraries Universal Services (e-rate) 

for 2022-2023. 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was adopted on a motion made by _____________________and 

seconded by ______________________.  Upon roll call vote, the following voted aye: _______.  The 

following voted nay: _____. The Chair declared the motion carried and the Resolution duly adopted on 

the 19th of May 2022. 

 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

CERTIFICATION 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board 

of Trustees of the Kent District Library, County of Kent, Michigan, at a regular meeting held on May 19,  

2022 and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to 

and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, and 

that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required by 

said Act. 

Dated: May 19, 2022 

 

Charles Myers, KDL Board Chair         Sheri Gilreath-Watts, KDL Board Secretary  


	05.2022 KDL Board Packet Cover Page 
	05.19.2022 Board of Trustee Agenda
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Meeting Agenda


	04.21.2022 - Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT 
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Meeting Minutes


	Unofficial Board Minutes 4-14-22
	Comstock Park Board Request pzurgable 5.6.22
	05 May Packet EGR Late Opening 06.25-signed
	05 May Packet EGR Late Opening 09.10-signed
	April Financials (1)
	Check Register - Board Report (3)
	Void Checks (2)
	2022 April's Director's Report
	April for May 2022 Monthly Projects Report
	April 2022 Statistical Summary
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries May 2022
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries
	May 2022


	BOARD OF TRUSTEES ATTENDANCE- 2022 
	KDL Policy Manual 04 Patron Behavior
	05 May Packet Resolution - Erate - 2022
	RESOLUTION
	Schools & Libraries Universal Services (eRate) for 2022-2023

	1. Vote to approve or disapprove Resolution for Schools and Libraries Universal Services (E-Rate) for 2022-2023. This resolution authorizes filing of the form 471 applications for funding year 2022-2023 and the payment of the applicant’s share upon ap...
	2. Authorizes the filing of FCC Form 471, Schools and Libraries Universal Service Program Services Ordered and Certification Form for the services and/or products as detailed in the attached report, “E-Rate Requests, FY 2023”, for the fiscal year 07/0...
	3. Authorizes payment of the applicant’s share subject to the following conditions:
	(1) approval of funding of the discounted portion by the Schools and Libraries Division (SLD) of the Universal Service Administrative Company (USAC) and
	(2) receipt of services during the fiscal year 07/01/2022-06/30/2023.




